
 

REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT
MEETING MINUTES 

March 27, 2003

A meeting of the Water District Commission was held on March 27, 2003 at the Bedford
Meeting Room.  Present were Marilyn Peterman, Selectman (Amherst), Michael
Scanlon, Town Council (Bedford), Tom Carrier, Water Superintendent (Derry), Mary
Jefrey, (Hollis), Tom Summers (Hudson), Frank Byron, Board of Selectman (Litchfield),
Jay Minkarah, Community Development Director (Merrimack), Noreen O'Connell
(Milford), Fred Britton, Alderman-at-Large (Nashua), Jean-Guy Bergeron, Board of
Selectmen representative (Pelham), Dennis McCarthy, Public Works Director
(Raymond), Kevin Waterhouse, State Representative (Windham), Andrew Singelakis,
Director of the Nashua Regional Planning Commission, and Karen White (Research
Team).   

It was noted that Attorneys Bill Drescher and Chip Sullivan, along with Barbara Pressley,
representative of the Mayor of Nashua and Nancy Amato, Chairperson of Selectmen,
Milford were present in the audience.

Chairperson Peterman opened the meeting at 6:35 P.M.

A discussion took place regarding how the minutes will be prepared.  The February 27th

minutes were verbatim as requested.  Ms. White pointed out that this became 28 pages
and took over six hours to prepare.  She asked if there might be a happy medium
between too skimpy and too much.  Ms. White noted that should something not be
recorded sufficiently it is always possible to go back to the tape and pick up a comment
made, key to a discussion, and insert it verbatim.  Chairperson Peterman advised that
this was discussed at the last meeting and the conclusion was that minutes would
continue to be verbatim.  Based on the time involved and the economic impact,
Chairperson Peterman asked for input.  Mr. Minkarah supported reducing the minutes,
noting that the public, who might want to go to the web-site, may find the verbatim
minutes overwhelming and too difficult to get through it, which loses its purpose.  He
suggested capturing the essence of the conversation, everybody will have the
opportunity to review and comment if they do not feel that something they said was
adequately expressed.  Ms. O'Connell, alternate for Cynthia Herman of Milford,
commented that verbatim minutes were a strong point to Ms. Herman and therefore Ms.
O'Connell would have to abstain from voting.  Chairperson Peterman summarized by
saying that the minutes will not be verbatim going forward.

Approval of Minutes

Approval of the February 27, 2003 Minutes was postponed until the next
meeting, however, Mr. McCarthy noted that Mr. Bates named appeared
incorrectly as "Pates".  Ms. White advised that it is doubtful that there will be any
minutes from the March 20th



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 2

Chairperson Peterman noted that when someone from the audience speaks, in
order to have those comments included in the minutes, it is necessary to use the
microphone and she asked that each speaker utilize it.

Agenda

Chairperson Peterman noted on the Agenda for this evening that a notation was
made regarding Membership and Withdrawal and the Amendments.  She noted
that the parts that are underlined and in Italics are the parts that were either
added or amended.  There were Sections A and D that had no changes but B
and C did.  She asked that each member review these to ensure it is accurate
and complete.

Public Time

Chairperson Peterman asked if anyone in the audience would like to speak.  No
one came forward.

Review sections from previous meeting: Membership and Withdrawal

Chairperson Peterman read the proposed changes:

b) "Any municipality in which the District Commission provides service, owns
assets including real property, water supply and distribution assets, or sale of
bulk water, or (proposes to -delete) provides service may elect to become a
member of the District on or before                    ; Thereafter, any municipality that
meets the requirements may petition to become a member of the District, and
upon a favorable vote of a sixty percent majority of the Representative Board
shall be eligible for membership.  New members will absorb any costs of joining
the District."

 It was suggested the "listed above" follow "meets the requirements".

Mr. Minkarah pointed out that "any municipality that ceases to meet the above
requirements will automatically be withdrawn from the District" should be added.

Chairperson Peterman continued reading her understanding of the proposed:

c) Any municipality may withdraw from the District membership at any time.
However withdrawal shall not affect the District Commission's authority to provide
water service with that municipality or charge rates for services.  Any costs
associated with withdrawal will be the responsibility of the withdrawing member.  

Chairperson Peterman noted that in writing this the concern that perhaps there
should be some notification requirement.  In furtherance she asked if there
should be language relative to a withdrawing member that also wishes to own
and maintain their part of the system, and how to determine the cost of purchase
of assets.  As Ms. White had said, there would be an appraisal of the
infrastructure and the value of shares from capital improvements.  Chairperson
Peterman suggested that language is needed to cover this.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 3

Ms. White read, "Any municipality may avail itself of the provisions of RSA
Chapter 38, to attain local control of the water supply and distribution assets
within its municipal boundaries, by notifying the Commission in writing to
negotiate a purchase price with the District Commission, and the filing of a
Petition with the PUC."

Chairperson Peterman asked Attorney Drescher for assistance in regards to the
notification requirements.  Attorney Drescher stated, "You do not need a lot of
language in order to have this withdrawal issue dealt with.  The purchase of the
assets by the Town is handled by the statute that already exists, but that statute
may be different when all of the smoke clears in this thing.  It should probably just
say something along the lines of "in accordance with applicable statutes or
applicable law".  "The withdrawal process normally would require a 30-60….
That is what we have with the school districts.  And of course the school districts,
you have the issue of dividing up the debt, but you won't have that here; I don't
think you will because you are going to have a self-perpetuating entity that will
not be taxing in those districts.  One of the interesting questions is are you going
to be taxed in the districts?"  Chairperson Peterman responded "payment in lieu
of."  

Ms. O'Connell asked if this implies that the municipality has given up some of its
own water supplies.  Ms. White explained that where there is a franchise, and a
town decided it wanted to serve those customers, it could withdraw from the
District, send the District Commission notice, and pay for the pipes and
infrastructure that the District Commission were to own in that Town (just the part
owned by the District; left over from Pennichuck).  It would have nothing to do
with the municipal system.  

Chairperson Peterman asked if Ms. White's recommendation of a sixty-day
notice was agreeable and the members present agreed that it is.

Attorney Sullivan responded to a question about notification provisions in the
PUC by saying, "The only provision is the procedure under Chapter 38 if it
became contested.   The PUC may then set the value.  The PUC's jurisdiction
over the District is limited to those areas where there is a conflict as there is now
between Nashua and Pennichuck, or where service is provided outside the
municipal boundaries."

Attorney Drescher asked what would happen if Nashua were to withdraw.

Mr. McCarthy responded, "You are talking two things here.  We are forming a
District.  The assets stay with the District.  If the municipality wants to withdraw
from the District, they can withdraw and then they do not have a vote.  That does
not mean that their assets are removed by their withdrawal.  If they want to
purchase their portion of the Water District's assets then they have to go through
the RSA38.  That would be first asking the District if they want to buy it.  If the
District says no, it does not want to sell it to the municipality, it would then have
to go through the eminent domain process with the PUC approval.  If it was a
community that had a well in it, the PUC is not going to approve that Town be
allowed to move out of the District and control the well, leaving the District



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 4

without resources.  Maybe in Raymond's case where water is actually sold to the
system and say it wants to buy it, the District may look at that and determine they
are paying an exurbanite rate to buy their water, let's cut that out of the District.
Two things could happen.  If Raymond bought those assets and owned them and
they were the only system that Raymond had, we would also automatically not
be a member of the District any more because there would no longer be any
Water District assets in the community." (He pointed out this is an example and
Raymond, in fact, does not have just one water system)

Attorney Sullivan noted, "If you have people making contributions to some kind of
a depreciation fund, a capital improvement fund, or that kind of thing, you would
want to put that in your document. "

Chairperson Peterman mentioned that somebody mentioned eminent domain.
She said a couple of things came up after the agenda was set.  Mr. Minkarah
asked if one municipality, under RSA38, could condemn the assets of another
municipality?  He stated that he asks because the Water District Commission
would be a 'municipality'.  Attorney Sullivan responded that if he were
representing Nashua, he would recommend they withdraw from the District.
Once they are no longer a member of the District then the District is serving
outside their municipal boundaries and is now providing service to Nashua under
a franchise from the Public Utilities Commission.  The municipality of Nashua
could condemn the other municipalities' assets in that town.  He gave the
example of Manchester services Bedford pursuant to a PUC tariff.  Bedford could
go in and try to condemn Manchester's assets because it is acting as a public
utility where it is serving outside its municipal boundaries.  He noted that whether
it were the core facilities or not, the theory would remain the same because of the
core, you get into whether the PUC would allow them to do that.  There are two
standards.  The first you have to show that it is in the public interest and then the
price of it.  

Chairperson Peterman continued regarding changes that took place after the
setting of the agenda.  One was that Attorney Sullivan was able to attend this
evening's meeting.  She stated that what this board had decided about
boundaries, she was not quite sure if it was correct in terms of the municipality
being the boundary of the system.  She asked Attorney Sullivan to address this
matter.

Attorney Sullivan advised, "The easiest way to do this is to take existing
municipalities right now."  The two he mentioned were Portsmouth and
Manchester that serve outside their municipal boundaries.  In 1988 the PUC
regulated any municipality that served outside its municipal boundaries.  A major
problem developed because public utility accounting is very different from the
way the town's account.  The Anti Quip law was passed because of Seabrook so
towns were not allowed to create capital funds for future projects.   The PUC
would apply the Anti Quip law to them and it became a very thorny issue.  The
legislature passed a law that said as long as the same rates are being charged
within the municipality, as without the municipality and providing the same quality
of service, you are not subject to PUC regulation, except for the need to request
the right to serve outside your municipal boundaries.    He then answered what
the franchise rights are.  You go back to the whole public utility theory that is that



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 5

the economy of scale is there that there should only be one provider.  You do not
need more than one provider so you have to go to the Public Utilities
Commission and they will decide who that one provider is going to be.

Attorney Sullivan said "In talking theoretically, that in New Hampshire, franchises
are not by law exclusive.  They can be factually exclusive which they have been
and that was the whole PS&H battle over corporate competition.  But in any
event since the District is asking for the exclusive right to serve a certain
geographic area of the state, you go to the Public Utilities Commission to show
that you have the financial managerial and technical expertise and that it is in the
public interest and in the public good for you to provide that service, and you to
be the provider of choice.  Whenever a municipality is acting outside its municipal
boundaries, it needs to go through that process and in effect becomes a public
utility when it is acting outside its municipal boundaries.  Subject to PUC
regulation on quality of service, all the time, on rates, if you are charging more
than some premium above what they are charging in town, and even at that, you
need to request from the public utility, exemption.  It is not automatic and the
PUC and step back in and say that although they found it in the public good to
exempt you before, because of X, Y and Z, we are putting you back under our
jurisdiction.  That is how they write their orders on the exemption aspect of it.  For
the purposes of this new body that we are creating under 53A, everything that
has been amended at the legislature is to make it clear that this body is a
municipality.  There are two layers of municipality now.  The Town of Bedford,
the Town of Amherst are the equivalent of citizens of this new municipality which
is the Pennichuck Water District.  The Pennichuck Water District is a municipal
corporation.  Its municipal boundaries consist of the municipal boundaries of its
members which if Bedford, Amherst and Nashua were the only ones that chose
to join the district; it would just be the municipal boundaries of those towns.  Does
that affect Amherst' right to provide water itself, no, because there is nothing
exclusive about the District's right to provide water within that town.  Where you
are serving outside the municipal boundaries, you become just like Manchester
Water Works serving outside its municipal boundaries, and you need a franchise
from the PUC and the franchise is nothing more than the obligation to serve and
the right to service.  So you not only take on the right to serve but if somebody
asks for service you have to provide them with service and if you need to drill a
well to meet the needs of that community, in your franchise area, you need to drill
a well to do it.  You have an obligation and the right to serve in your franchise
area which the PUC will enforce when somebody complains."

Chairman Peterman asked that in order to join the District, a Town may or may
not vote to do that?  Do they need to or is it an option.   Attorney Drescher said
that if a significantly large town with a lot of customers decides to withdraw as a
member of this District Commission that act would have the affect of having the
Commission become a regulated utility.  There you may want to make withdrawal
a little bit more difficult and a long enough process so that if there are these kinds
of issues to deal with, the Commission has the opportunity to deal with it before
the result takes place.  He suggested the Commission may also want to include
something in the withdrawal language stating that the withdrawal was authorized
by a majority vote of the legislative body of that municipality as this would be a
very significant decision.



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 6

Attorney Sullivan said there are certain requirements to join that 53A spells out.  I
think that 53A states that you have to specify in your 53A agreement, the process
for withdrawing.  It takes a vote to get in for some communities and suggested
the District Commission may want the same burden to be placed on the elected
officials of that town to withdraw.

Attorney Drescher suggested that the document may say that the withdrawal
would not be finally accepted until any potential approvals from state or
regulatory agencies are received.  Both Attorney Drescher and Attorney Sullivan
concurred that the District Commission would have to file with the PUC should a
community withdraw.

Attorney Sullivan stated that once a community belongs to the District a franchise
is not needed.  The District would be a municipality with the right to serve within
its municipal boundaries to do what it wants within its municipal boundaries.  He
said that to be prudent, the District Commission would want to file a franchise
application to serve a withdrawing municipality.  

Ms. White explained that she was considering the boundaries of the District in
terms of former Pennichuck franchises, which has been confusing the group.
Chairperson Peterman expressed her concern that the way the committee has
written its description of boundaries be correct.  Attorney Sullivan had not seen
this, however.  He did advise that when work started on the District last summer
with Ms. Pressley, Ms. White and Mr. Singelakis, he had taken the proposed to
the water team at the PUC so they did not think that things were being done
behind their back.  They had the Charter and proposed legislation since August.
Everything he has done has been run by them, and his argument all along has
been that the municipal boundaries of the new District are the towns that join.
Therefore there is no need for the PUC to be involved from a regulatory aspect.
Chairperson Peterman advised that this is different than what is in the Draft
Charter.  Ms. White noted that the original Draft Charter is "incorrect" according
to what Attorney Sullivan just presented.  Chairperson Peterman expressed that
she wants to ensure that the amended Charter is correct.  Attorney Sullivan
stated that the present Charter document is talking about "service territories of
the District", and not what the "boundaries of the District" are.  He advised that
whenever he draws up a contract there is always a clause at the very end that
says "the headings are merely for identification purposes and they have no affect
upon what the paragraph means".  If he were to remove the word "boundaries"
from the heading, he would not know that the paragraph was about "boundaries
of the District".  He advised that the "boundaries of the District" should be
distinguished from the "service territories" and the "service territories can be a
decision that is left to the management, either of the Board, the representative
Board or whoever is in place as to how they expand the service areas.  If you
define "service areas" as the District has, as those areas currently served, and
then "boundaries" to be the entire municipality, it would be fine in his opinion.

Ms. White suggested that she take the most recent amendment and work with
Attorney Sullivan as to wording and email the committee the revised draft.
Attorney Sullivan said the reason he brought up this piece is that PUC staff as
presented by the legislature is relying on the fact that if the District expands its
service within a town, outside what are the current franchise boundaries of



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 7

Pennichuck, that does not mean that the PUC has to be involved in any way
whatsoever and that is what we are trying to clarify.  Anything you do within those
municipal boundaries, you are free to do without PUC approval.

Mr. Summers asked about Hudson (inaudible).  Attorney Sullivan responded that
Hudson is a municipality that is serving itself.  He further advised that there use
to be a provision where bulk water contracts were subject, between even
municipalities as in this case, to the jurisdiction of the PUC.  The municipalities
did not like that and all contracts entered into (after a date of 1992) are no longer
subject to the jurisdiction of the PUC.  What is important is that, not only Hudson,
but Budweiser, Milford; any of those bulk water contracts that Pennichuck is
currently serving, it is necessary for the District or Nashua when it purchases, to
say that it will reaffirm those contracts.  He noted that Pennichuck acquired the
rights to withdraw from the wells and a premium is paid for having access to that
water.  If they did not reaffirm one part of the contract, it might threaten another
part of the contract which is the right of Pennichuck to withdraw X amount of
water from the Litchfield wells, that are owned by Hudson.  Mr. McCarthy asked
what happens to the unfranchised areas.  Attorney Sullivan advised that
"franchise" has no meaning if you are a municipality and you serve within your
municipal boundaries there is no franchise.  He noted that this does bring up an
interesting scenario.  If there was a dispute with the Town and the District both
wanting to serve a development, how is that dispute handled?  He advised that if
you were a member it would be handled within the politics of the District.  If that
does not work to your satisfaction you can always withdraw from the District and
then the District would have to go to the PUC and ask for a franchise.  The Town
could object to that and in Attorney Sullivan's experience he finds that when a
municipality wants to serve, it generally trumps the private utility.  

Mr. Minkarah asked if this should be written into the Charter.  Attorney Sullivan
responded that it can be written into the Charter as to how you want to handle
such disputes.   Or you can state that in the event that a municipality determines
that it wants to serve a certain area within its municipality and its logical
extension of its current system, that it will have the primary right to do that.  Spell
it out in the document that you are creating.  

Mr. Minkarah suggested that it would be important to the District to include
something in the Charter that addresses this.  Chairperson Peterman asked in
what part of the document would this appear and Attorney Sullivan responded
that he would recommend creating a separate paragraph that deals with it
specifically.  

Mr. Bergeron asked if confusion takes place because of the "areas" and
"territories".  Ms. White said she would like an opportunity to work with Attorney
Sullivan to clear up this confusion in the wording.

Mr. Britton asked when we state "the entire municipality" do we mean the
geographic area of that town or city?  Attorney Sullivan responded that it means
the "municipal boundaries of that town or city".

Chairperson Peterman advised that a letter from Pennichuck to the City of
Nashua et al about the offer that Nashua made.  She proposed that this letter be



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 8

sent out to the membership and that it be put on the agenda for the next meeting.
She advised that its subject is the proposal of Nashua to buy parts of Pennichuck
and not the whole thing and Pennichuck turned it down.  We need to discuss the
offer and we need to talk with Nashua and asked Mr. Britton to have anybody
who should be present from Nashua at the next meeting.  Chairperson Peterman
noted that the District is moving closer to having the legislation pass, with a
Senate meeting on March 26, we may know within two weeks if a vote is taken.
Upon approval the District would be able to make an offer.  Mr. Byron asked Mr.
Britton if he could clear some level for a confidential discussion.  Mr. Britton
advised that this would require a vote of the full Board of Alderman that meets on
the second Tuesday in April.  He advised as the Mayor has stated that Nashua
will go ahead and petition the PUC to buy these three regulated utilities by
eminent domain and ask them to put a price on it.  He noted that the Mayor's
committee on this subject has not met for about two months and they need to
meet and talk about some of these issues.  

Ms. Pressley suggested that the committee should think about the purchase of
the entire Pennichuck business and pointed out that newspapers have been
reporting that Pennichuck would be open to an offer that was for the entire
system.  Chairperson Peterman agreed and said that timing is everything.  When
Nashua made its offer the District Commission was not knowledgeable at that
time but is much closer now to forming a District, in spite of not having a charter.
She stated that they are much closer to being recognized by the legislature and
thereby able to get revenue bonds but expressed her concern regarding eminent
domain because of the cost and time involved.  She asked the members to take
the matter to their respective town Boards and return to the next meeting when it
may be better known where the Senate is in this regard.  She asked Mr. Scanlon
if he was at the Senate hearing and he responded that he was.  He related that
they were very supportive of the process and that one senator had some
questions but mostly centered around what kind of oversight would the PUC
have if needed.  Betsy Patton, Chairperson of the House Committee was going
to have a chat with Senator Barnes to alleviate his concerns.  There were two
other senators who spoke with Mr. Scanlon and thought it was a very good idea
and Mr. Scanlon believes it will be resolved in a favorable manner in the next
couple of weeks.  Chairperson Peterman stated that the last hurdle would be the
governor's signature.   Mr. Scanlon noted that the legislation does not allow the
formation of the District; that they can do that on their own.  The difference would
be that today municipal bonds would need to be used to do it.  Passing the
Senate will allow the use of revenue bonds.  Mr. Britton reviewed what Nashua
has asked to be prepared with at the next meeting as; 1) someone come
prepared to discuss Nashua's position and the next steps are, 2) be prepared to
discuss as much as possible what was discussed in non-public session, or all of
it if possible.  Mr. Byron said he is not trying to find out what happened in non-
public but the last time the matter was discussed by the District group, there were
things that Mr. Britton was not able to share, that are relative to some of the
questions.  Ms. White questioned, now that Pennichuck has said they will not sell
just the three regulated utilities willingly, and we know that going the route of
eminent domain is costly and time-consuming.  It could end up being that if the
District wants to buy anything it could end up being that the District would be
ordered to buy the entire thing.  She noted that a great deal of time and money
would have been spent on eminent domain.  She asked if the Nashua Aldermen



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 9

would want to re-visit the decision and Mr. Britton stated that no one has
expressed an interest in re-visiting the decision and the Mayor has stated that the
City of Nashua will move ahead for the full acquisition of the utility.  Ms. White
then asked if there are towns within the proposed District who feel strongly that
they would like Nashua to consider acquiring the whole thing, and could
Nashua's mind be changed.  Mr. Britton noted that Nashua needs to look at it.
He further said that he believes they need to sit down with the Mayor (Mr. Britton,
Mr. McCarthy, Mayor's internal committee working this issue) and talk about
these issues and everyone is clear.  He stated that no one has been negative.
Ms. White said that she heard some comments from town representatives who
feel fairly strongly that we should at least test the waters to see what could be
negotiated for purchase of the entire company as a voluntary purchase to try to
avoid an eminent domain proceeding.  Mr. McCarthy stated that he believes it to
be a little premature, having dealt a number of times with the eminent domain
process.  He would not want to see this District put any pressure on Nashua
relative to how they feel.  I think one of the purchasing pressures is the eminent
domain process.  Any time one begins work with property that is going to be
taken, the owners work with you a lot more when they know you are very serious
about taking it.  Mr. Scanlon said he agrees but suggests that the strategy would
be to run dual tracks at this point.  He thinks Nashua should continue with its
eminent domain proceedings.  He suggested that the District committee
members create a sub-committee to approach Pennichuck for the purpose of
negotiating a deal.

Mr. Carrier questions pertaining to eminent domain and service contracts were
inaudible.  Mr. Sullivan responded that it is necessary to understand that Nashua
offered to purchase all three utilities.  The two other corporations are a service
corporation and the development/real estate company.  That is what Pennichuck
said they cannot agree to; the breaking up of the company.   All of those service
contracts are included in what was requested and there is nothing that keeps the
parties from voluntarily agreeing to anything. There is a process.  It started the
way it had to and now there is an opportunity to talk.  You have to keep going as
Mr. Scanlon said; along both tracks.  Mr. Sullivan stated that his personal opinion
is that the PUC's jurisdiction and its public interest jurisdiction is over utilities and
to say that Nashua was not allowed to condemn the utilities because it was going
to leave other corporations that this holding company decided to branch out into,
is extremely appealable.  The only thing that Nashua has not requested to
purchase is Southwood Corporation and the service corporation.  The service
corporation merely operates Hudson's utility.  He stated that he does not think
that the PUC has jurisdiction over that.  He advised that there are a lot of certified
operators out there bidding for those contracts.

Mr. McCarthy stated that he agrees that the end result should be the total
acquisition of Pennichuck and its assets.  He said he considers it important that
Nashua be consulted before dual roads are taken.  He said that he would want to
ensure that there isn't any riff between what Nashua is doing and what the Water
District is doing.  Mr. Scanlon said "I agree 100% with that and I would even say
that Nashua should be represented on the Regional District's negotiations just to
make sure that they have both sides of the story.  Mr. Byron was about to say the
same thing, he stated.  Mr. Waterhouse asked for confirmation that Nashua has
a full meeting of the Board of Aldermen coming up the second Tuesday of April. 



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 10

Mr. Britton confirmed that is correct.  Mr. Waterhouse continued that this
committee would be meeting the following Thursday and Chairperson Peterman
confirmed that is correct.  He suggested that this committee begin making plans
to meet with Pennichuck and in the meantime have Nashua attend the Water
District's next meeting.  Chairperson Peterman suggested that this matter be
taken up at the next meeting after meeting with Nashua and perhaps at that time
go ahead and set up the sub-committee and move forward.  

Mr. Britton advised that he is not sure what he will be able to accomplish in two
weeks but that he will do everything that he can.  He thinks that the internal
committee needs to sit down and talk again (The Mayor, Brian McCarthy,
himself, the group that supports - legal and financial).  The meeting minutes
where the Nashua Board of Selectmen talked about strategy was sealed and in
order to make that information available to the Water District would require a vote
by the full Board of Aldermen and he cannot guarantee that is going to happen
that Tuesday night.  Mr. McCarthy asked if it would be possible to meet in non-
public session to discuss strategy.  Mr. Scanlon advised that this could be posted
on the next agenda that the committee was going into non-public session.

Charter

a.  Representative Boards and voting

Chairperson Peterman noted that Ms. White had distributed a starting point for
deciding upon representation using a non-weighted ratepayer formula.   Ms.
White commented that this presentation is one way that is simple to accomplish
the goal, looking at it based on ratepayers/users of the water, who will be
affected most by the quality of service and capital improvements.  She explained
that she thought it was important that each town that is a member has at least
one vote so they have a meaningful voice.  Those towns that have service
contracts only, in this scenario, give those towns the minimum one permanent
vote as well.  She reviewed examples from the handout pointing out that one
vote is given for the first 500 ratepayers and a second vote for 501 to 1000 and
at the end of each year, the number of ratepayers in each community would be
calculated.  Increased numbers may increase the number of votes etc.  Those
towns with the permanent one vote due to not having any ratepayers, would not
be adjusted at year-end.  She recognizes that there is a disparity due to giving
towns the one minimum vote, reducing Nashua's percentage.  Mr. Carrier asked
what "customer" refers to under "present votes" and Ms. White explained that
those towns are customers but they have not as yet joined the District.  "Affiliate"
means that the town has actually joined the District.  Mr. Carrier's comments
were inaudible.

Mr. Singelakis suggested that another way around it might be to divide it up by
the number of ratepayers instead of making it weighted out.  Mr. Scanlon found
this to be cumbersome when one town would be given a percentage of a vote.

Mr. Byron suggested a number of votes by connection.  Mr. Minkarah stated that
in all the scenarios he has looked at, none of them seem to be fair to every
community.  He noted that by going by the number of ratepayers would not be
fair because in Merrimack's case, one ratepayer may be one very large



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 11

company.  In the case of a condo association, it would get one vote.  He stated
that he believes it important to put in some protection; perhaps a 2/3's majority
vote on certain issues be required, so that one town does not dictate.  He stated
that overall that Ms. White's proposal as a system works for him.

Ms. Pressley stated that she is a believer in one person, one vote and although
there are some inequities in the ratepayers, that is the one thing that the water
company had records on.  The ratepayers are the number of bills you send out
so there is always going to be a handle on that.  She suggested with regards to
the handout if it was thought that each of these numbers represented delegates
with a certain amount of percentage points, it might be easier to comprehend.
She reviewed the first, Amherst, as having 807 ratepayers, over the total of
27,279.  Amherst would have one delegate because it has under 1,000
ratepayers, but it would have a point system of 807.  She advised that in taking a
vote Amherst would say "having authority for 807 points Amherst votes (yes or
no)".   Mr. Scanlon asked about this with respect to Derry that has 1,098
ratepayers, and what would be wrong with giving approximately 600 points
instead of one with 1,000 and one with 100.  Ms. Pressley continued with the
handout and noted Atkinson with only 5 ratepayers would have the most
representation with one vote for only 5 ratepayers.  

Chairperson Peterman asked Ms. Pressley to put in writing what she would
propose, send it to Ms. White and it would be sent out to the members for further
discussion at the next meeting.  

Mr. McCarthy would like to point out that the founding fathers of this country had
a similar problem and they resolved it by having two (actually three) boards; one
that was representative, based on the population of the country and the other
being an equal vote to each state.  He suggested that perhaps that should be
considered in this case.  Mr. Byron stated that he has no problem with the
proportionate vote like what Ms. White has proposed.  It makes perfect sense to
him.  He also believes that there should be a split between two groups of people;
one being a proportioned representation based upon ratepayers and another
group that may be based upon one rep for one community.  He suggested
working a veto power into the mix.  

Attorney Drescher commented that a relatively small group would be required to
run the day to day requirements of the District.  Mr. Byron agreed and said that
intent may me that people will be hired for this; managers who are going to run
this water district for you.  They could potentially report to the Senate side,
almost like a Board of Selectmen who would sit there and give them the day to
day operating responsibilities or meet more frequently.  In terms of some of the
bigger decisions, it would take both sides to do that.

Chairperson Peterman asked that if Mr. McCarthy and Mr. Byron have a similar
idea that they could present, and anyone else who has an idea on how to
accomplish this, it would be helpful to have them on the table to flush out.

Mr. Scanlon addressed the percentage of votes as previously discussed by Ms.
Pressley.  He noted that he likes the way Ms. White presented it with the
exception of Nashua having 43 votes as noted in the document handout. He has



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 12

concerns about anyone having that many votes.  Mr. Scanlon noted that he sees
the Policy Board meeting quarterly and the Commission Board meeting very
regularly, managing the day to day operations.   Mr. Waterhouse said Mr.
Scanlon's support of Ms. White's plan overall was what he was about to say.  Mr.
Summers and Mr. Currier made inaudible comments.   Mr. Carrier did say that he
was supportive of Ms. White's plan.   Chairperson Peterman called attention to
the Policy Board duties to some degree are outlined as 1-6 and the Commission
duties are outlined as well under Commission in the Draft Charter.  She
suggested using this as a guide.  Chairperson Peterman reiterated that Ms.
White's proposal is before them, Ms. Pressley will present her suggestion prior to
the next meeting and perhaps there is something in the middle of the two.   

Mr. Britton summarized what has taken place as being in favor of the 1,000
guideline, bringing the Board members down to a potential of 36, with 24 for
Nashua and 12 for others.  When you consider that there are over 28,000
ratepayers and that Nashua represents over 21,000 of them, that is a 73.6% of
the three regulating utilities.  He believes that Nashua's position is that they want
that representation.  It noted that it does not mean they cannot negotiate and
compromise but going in, a fair position is that we want the representation that
our ratepayers entitle us to.  In the interest of the DIstrict and in the interest of
compromise they recognize that they have to be flexible as well.

Mr. Scanlon asked if one vote for every five hundred gives Nashua a better
representation than one for every one thousand.  Mr. Britton responded that
previously it was around 65%.  He needs to take this back to his committee.

Mr. Minkarah stated again that he does like what Ms. White put together but he
wants to state that he does not believe that ratepayers alone are representative
of the interest of each of the communities.  When you look at the issues related
to the watershed, the water supply, Nashua may have the greater number of
ratepayers but it does not have a greater percent of the water shed and water
supply and ground water resources.  The interests that the balance of the
communities have are substantial.  He does not see Merrimack going along with
any one town having 85% because the remainder together is meaningless.  He
does not think it is possible to come up with a structure that fairly addresses
everyone's interest.  What he liked about Ms. White's proposal is that it attempts
to balance proportional interests with giving everyone a voice.  

Mr. Byron calculated differently than Ms. White who used 1 for 500 and Mr.
Byron used 1 for 1,000.  By using this format there would be a total of 45 of
which Nashua would have 22 delegates.  

Ms. O'Connell asked if some type of value or point system should be
incorporated to reflect the assets that the other towns are bringing to the table.
Chairperson Peterman responded that there is a proposal sent by Mr. Minkarah
via email that she had not brought up because it addresses the watershed issues
and is an excellent starting point but I thought that it is something that is going to
be a sub-committee.  Mr. Minkarah explained that what it was designed to do
was to address the reality that no matter what system we come up with, the other
watershed communities are going to wind up with such a small representation
that I do not think that it adequately reflects their interest.  He tried to put together



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 13

something that would recognize that by creating a board within the structure of
the organization that specifically addresses those interests.

Ms. White brought up about when it is talked about Membership in the District
and who is eligible.  She asked if a town that has one condo serviced by
Pennichuck for maintenance, with no buy or sell of water, no bulk water, no
ratepayers, should this town get voting rights in the District?   The way her
proposal was drawn, this town with one condo would get one vote.  She asked if
this is really the way the committee wants to do it or do they want to have it be
ratepayers in some form, either consumers, offices or purchase and sale of bulk
water.  

Attorney Sullivan noted that "providing service" means to give water service.
These service contracts are called "jobbing".  It is when a utility sends out its
employees to install a heat system.  It was not for a ratepayer and had nothing to
do with the regulated utility.  In the same sense, Pennichuck has taken its core
business and is jobbing.  What it is doing is going out and doing what its
infrastructure allows it to do but has nothing to do with it being a water utility.  It is
out in a marketplace that consists of a number of people bidding on these
condominium complexes.  Chairperson Peterman suggested a definition might
be needed for "providing service".

Mr. Currier spoke but it was inaudible.  Attorney Sullivan responded that to get a
certified operator I license may take half a day.  You do have to take a plumbing
test.  He stated that it is not that difficult to become a level one certified operator.

Mr. Minkarah asked where this would leave Hudson if they go with a definition of
"providing service" to be mean "providing water".  Chairperson Peterman
responded with the answer being bulk water.

Mr. Scanlon noted that a community that has a service contract has a lot more
flexibility than a community that has pipes in the ground.  With a service contract
you can terminate at the expiration.  But with pipes in the ground owned by this
water district those towns have a much more vested interest.  

Ms. White stated that she would take the suggestion and work on it and bring it
back with changes.

Ms. Pressley commented that she thinks the discussion is really healthy by a
group of people with vast experience who jump in and share ideas.  She pointed
out that everyone should remember that they are not creating, but rather buying
a system that they all agree has been working quite well.   Hopefully if they are
able to purchase this system, it will continue to serve as it always has.    She
asked that everyone keep in mind that they are purchasing a privately held
company.  

Chairperson Peterman summed up the evening.  She reiterated that they would
like to have someone from Nashua's water committee attend the next District
meeting with whatever information they are able to share with the District.  Mr.
Britton said he would ask corporate counsel to come also.  Chairperson
Peterman stated she thinks this is a good start of the representative board and



REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT CHARTER - March 27, 2003 - Page 14

again Ms. White will present a revised version of what was handed out tonight,
Ms. Pressley will present another option and any other input would be
appreciated.  She said that Mr. Minkarah's suggestion to establish a sub-
committee to address the concerns along with the policy board of the
communities that actually have the source would be taken into consideration.  

 
Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 8:42 P.M. on a motion by Mr. McCarthy, seconded by Mr.
Singelakis.  Motion passed unanimously.


